# MINUTES OF THE CABINET MEMBER SIGNING MEETING HELD ON MONDAY, 15TH NOVEMBER, 2021, 2.15 - 2.25 PM

PRESENT: Councillor Peray Ahmet, Leader of the Council.

**In attendance:** Roy Nelson, Project Manager; Beth Waltzer, Interim Head of Waste; Ann Cunningham, Head of Highways and Parking; Mark Stevens, Assistant Director of Direct Services; and Fiona Rae, Principal Committee Co-ordinator.

## 58. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

There were no apologies for absence.

#### 59. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

# 60. THE AWARD OF THE CALL-OFF CONTRACT FOR CCTV EQUIPMENT AND SERVICES

The Leader considered the report which sought approval to enter into a call-off contract with TYCO Fire and Integrated Solutions (UK) Ltd (trading as TYCO Integrated Fire & Security), under Contract Standing Order (CSO) 9.07.1d, for the provision of CCTV equipment and services, as was permitted on the Eastern Shires Purchasing Organisation (ESPO) Framework 628 and in accordance with CSO 7.01.b (selecting one or more suppliers from a framework). The contract would be for a period of 5 years.

The contract was required to support the purchase of CCTV cameras and services required for the extension of public safety surveillance and traffic enforcement services across the borough.

# The Leader RESOLVED

Pursuant to the Council's Contract Standing Orders (CSO) 9.07.01d, to award the contract for the provision of CCTV equipment and services to TYCO Fire and Integrated Solutions (UK) Ltd (trading as TYCO Integrated Fire & Security) for a period of 5 years for a maximum contract sum of £7,436,722.83.

### Reasons for decision

Contract Standing Order (CSO) 9.07.1d requires that all contracts valued at £500,000 (five hundred thousand pounds) or more at the time of award may only be awarded, assigned, or novated by the Cabinet.



A competitive procurement exercise was carried out under the Eastern Shires Purchasing Organisation (ESPO) Framework 628 (Issue 24 – 2019) Security and Surveillance Framework (Lot 1 - Public Space Surveillance Systems).

The procurement was launched on 28 June 2021 and closed on 30 July 2021. One response was submitted and evaluated against price and quality.

Following evaluation of the bid submitted by TYCO Fire and Integrated Solutions (UK) Ltd, it was found to meet all requirements. The actual evaluation scores are set out in paragraph 6.6 of the report.

The recommended award allows the Council to continue working with a supplier with extensive experience and a proven track record in the provision and maintenance of public safety and traffic enforcement CCTV systems and services. This contractor has a proven track record of good service delivery and a willingness to deliver efficiencies through continuous improvements, thereby providing the Council with best value.

# Alternative options considered

The following options were considered:

**Do nothing.** This is not considered a feasible option as the existing CCTV equipment contract has a very low value remaining on it. Additional cameras are required at this point in time to support the delivery of several traffic schemes, including School Streets. There is also an expectation that more CCTV cameras will need to be purchased in the coming years by both Highways and Parking Service and by the Community Safety Team.

**Open Tender**: The option to undertake an open tender process was considered. However, it was deemed that the level of Council resources required to complete an open tender was not justified when a suitable framework agreement was available. Furthermore, the framework agreement is of the appropriate specialist nature, catering specifically for CCTV. Irrespectively, the procurement process deployed has passed the value for money test whilst, in addition, the cost of the cameras and their cameras would be likely to increase by the time a further procurement process is enacted.

A mini-competition exercise through the ESPO Framework was considered the most appropriate route to ensure that the Council has a method for purchasing new CCTV equipment as and when required.

# 61. SUPPLY OF CCTV EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE SERVICES - CONTRACT AWARD

The Leader considered the report which sought approval to award a contract to TYCO Fire & Integrated Solutions (UK) Limited (trading as TYCO Integrated Fire & Security) for CCTV maintenance.

The report was seeking approval from Cabinet for the award of contract under Contract Standing Order (CSO) 9.07.1 (d) which stated that all contracts valued at

£500,000 (five hundred thousand pounds) or more at the time of award may only be awarded, assigned, or novated by the Cabinet. The award was for the provision of CCTV equipment maintenance services for the Council's CCTV provision from 1 December 2021, and this contract would cover:

- CCTV infrastructure equipment servers in River Park House and equipment in the CCTV control room in Alexandra House.
- Maintenance of community safety, traffic enforcement and School Streets cameras.

This contract would support the Council in the maintenance of the refreshed and upgraded camera network and CCTV infrastructure. The capital investment into the Council's CCTV provision had significantly increased the current number of cameras across the borough (increasing from 132 to 282) to improve public confidence, detect and deter criminality as well as improve the flow of traffic across the borough. Please see Appendix 1 of the report for camera locations.

This was a new contract to be awarded for a period of 4 years, to a total value of £1,836,668.

Costs may fluctuate marginally as equipment is added or removed over the duration of the contract, which has been captured via an agreed schedule of rates within the tender. The current cost projections are based on best knowledge of changes in new cameras/stock at the time of writing this report.

The projected 4-year cashflow is set out as follows:

Table 1: CCTV Maintenance Contract Costs*				
Contract Year 1	Contract Year 2	Contract Year 3	Contract Year 4	Contract Cost Total
£322,678	£485,223	£512,585	£516,182	£1,836,668

<sup>\*</sup>Table 1 shows annual contract costs, as opposed to financial year costs.

### The Leader RESOLVED

Pursuant to Contract Standing Order 9.07.1(d), to approve the award of contract for the provision of maintenance services to TYCO Fire & Integrated Solutions (UK) Limited (trading as TYCO Integrated Fire & Security) for a period of 4 years for the value of £1,836,668.

# Reasons for decision

The Council initiated a competitive exercise through the Official Journal of the EU (OJEU) and an OJEU notice was issued on 14 May 2021, to invite tenders with submissions due on 13 June 2021. The procurement process followed the Open Procedure, in accordance with Regulation 27 of the Public Contract Regulations 2015. A total of seven providers registered interest and one provider submitted a bid for the contract.

The tender procedure consisted of a single stage process, including 'selection questions' and 6 qualitative questions, assessing the bidders against the broad range of required experience, skills and capabilities as described in the specification. The submitted bid has been evaluated against price and quality to ensure that it delivers value for money.

The successful bidder has demonstrated its ability and capability through responses to the tender requirements and questions, and it is therefore proposed to be the successful provider.

The current contract is due to expire on 30 November 2021 and this new contract will align with the expanded and modern current CCTV provision. This new contract is necessary for service maintenance continuity.

# Alternative options considered

**Doing nothing** – This is not a feasible option as not having a CCTV maintenance contract would impact on the ability to provide a functional provision as the lack of a maintenance contract ultimately risks infrastructure failure and loss of CCTV capability. Risks associated with failure include loss of public and key stakeholders' confidence, increased crime and disorder, failures in traffic management and loss of related income.

Re-procure the contract – As the current contract is due to expire on 30 November 2021, this option would result in a period where, similar to the 'Doing nothing' option, not having a CCTV maintenance contract would impact on the ability to provide a functional provision. It is worth noting that the CCTV maintenance contract has previously been the subject of a challenge when a framework contract procurement approach was deployed. Given that an open tender approach has been undertaken in this instance, there is no guarantee that more bids would be received from a second procurement exercise – whilst the prices quoted in the schedule of rates may also increase as a consequence of inflation. This is therefore not regarded as a feasible option, particularly as the tender has passed the value for money test.

LEADE	R: Cllr Peray Ahmet
Signed	by Leader
Date	16 November 2021